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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Welcome to the

          3  Committee on Transportation. Today the Committee

          4  will consider two bills, Intro. No. 852 and Intro.

          5  No. 855, which deal with the regulation of mobile

          6  telephone use while driving.

          7                 The necessity for this Council to

          8  seriously consider legislation in this area should

          9  be apparent to everyone. Recent studies of

         10  respective organizations have shown that the

         11  possibility of being involved in an automobile

         12  accident greatly increased when the operator of the

         13  motor vehicle is using a mobile telephone.

         14                 An analysis of existing studies

         15  illustrate that people that used a mobile telephone

         16  while driving were anywhere from 34 percent to 300

         17  percent more likely to have an accident.

         18                 Another recent study found that

         19  drivers reported to be using a mobile telephone at

         20  the time of a collision had a nine-fold risk of a

         21  fatality over those drivers who were not using a

         22  mobile telephone.

         23                 These statistics, along with our own

         24  collective personnel experiences and observations,

         25  point to the need for action to limit the
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          2  devastating impact that drivers use of mobile

          3  telephones while driving has on our citizenry.

          4                 Despite all the proof that the mobile

          5  telephone use while driving increased the risk

          6  accidents and fatality, the State of New York has

          7  not seen fit to regulate their use as of this point

          8  in time.

          9                 It is therefore incumbent upon this

         10  Committee and the legislative body to take action in

         11  order to protect the citizens of this City. If the

         12  legislation we are considering today can result in

         13  saving even one life, we must take action. To do

         14  anything less would be simply irresponsible.

         15                 I know that there has been a lot of

         16  discussions and a lot of talk about legislation and

         17  about banning use of cell phones, not only here,

         18  other counties have done it already. I know that

         19  even after the counties have passed it, the

         20  Executive side had taken a second look at it, and

         21  everybody is looking at this in a way that maybe

         22  we're going a little too far or maybe we should

         23  really push the state to take action.

         24                 I am of the opinion even though right

         25  now the state, I understand, is negotiating some
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          2  sort of legislation, I would hope that the state

          3  would be the one that would pass such legislation so

          4  it can be equally enforced around the counties,

          5  instead of having one county have one piece of

          6  legislation and a second county have a different

          7  piece of legislation, and different rules, and

          8  drivers being confused, I think it is important that

          9  we have a unified law which would enable people to

         10  abide by and also make it safe for all drivers.

         11                 So, I hope that this hearing, and our

         12  efforts and our indication that we are serious about

         13  passing some legislation, would wake up the state

         14  and say let's pass something.

         15                 I am willing to work with the State

         16   -- we are willing to work with the State

         17  Legislature, and we are looking to forward to see

         18  that something happens. But in the interim, if

         19  nothing does happen, we are committed to pass some

         20  legislation, and I hope after today's hearing,

         21  obviously we will have another hearing, we could

         22  come up with a bill that everybody can live with.

         23                 At this time I want to call upon the

         24  Administration to testify.

         25                 MR. GROTELL: Yes, good morning,
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          2  Chairman Dear, and members of the Committee on

          3  Transportation. My name is Robert Grotell, I am the

          4  Director of the Mayor's Office of Transportation. I

          5  am joined this morning by Steve Fishner, the Mayor's

          6  Criminal Justice Coordinator. We are pleased to be

          7  here on behalf of Mayor Giuliani and present

          8  testimony on the two bills currently before you

          9  today, but seek to achieve the same goal, prohibit

         10  the use of mobile telephone, commonly referred to as

         11  cell phone, while operating a motor vehicle within

         12  the City of New York. This is a goal that the Mayor

         13  strongly supports.

         14                 Given the similarities of Intro. 852,

         15  introduced by Speaker Vallone, and Intro. 855

         16  introduced by Transportation Committee Chairman Dear

         17  by request of the Mayor, it is clear that only one

         18  bill should emerge from this Committee to address

         19  this growing public safety concern.

         20                 It is the intent of this testimony to

         21  describe the bill's similarities, point out where

         22  the two bills differ and suggest ways in which the

         23  bills can be reconciled.

         24                 We all agree that using a cell phone

         25  while operating a motor vehicle can divert attention
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          2  away from driving.

          3                 This loss of concentration translates

          4  into an increased potential for accidents and places

          5  pedestrians, vehicle occupants and other innocent

          6  bystanders at risk.

          7                 Studies conducted to date have

          8  concluded that using a cell phone while operating a

          9  motor vehicle is a major distraction and increases

         10  the risk of accidents.

         11                 According to the National Highway

         12  Traffic Safety Administration, driver

         13  inattentiveness is a contributing factor in 65

         14  percent of all motor vehicle accidents.

         15                 The University of Toronto found that

         16  using a cell phone can increase the risk of having

         17  an accident by the factor of four.

         18                 Furthermore, common sense just tells

         19  us operating a cell phone results in the loss of

         20  full concentration necessary to operate a motor

         21  vehicle in New York City.

         22                 Given the growing popularity of cell

         23  phones, the potential accident risks associated with

         24  their use by motorists must be recognized.

         25                 The Speaker's and the Mayor's bills
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          2  take a similar approach in addressing this problem.

          3  Both bills seek to significantly reduce the accident

          4  risk associated with cell phones by prohibiting

          5  their use by the operator of a motor vehicle.

          6                 Both bills would require drivers who

          7  wish to use their cell phones to do so with a

          8  hands-free device that allows the driver to keep

          9  both hands on the steering wheel.

         10                 Alternatively, motorists may use a

         11  hand-held mobile phone provided that their vehicle

         12  is parked. Both bills also contain a provision

         13  regarding emergency telephone calls. The Speaker's

         14  bill, however, provides for an affirmative defense

         15  in such cases. We prefer this concept and believe it

         16  should be included in the bill agreed upon by the

         17  Mayor and the City Council.

         18                 While the bill's basic frameworks are

         19  similar, there are several key differences. The

         20  first issue that must be addressed is the definition

         21  of mobile telephones. The Speaker's definition

         22  includes not only telephones but any and all

         23  wireless communication devices, which could include

         24  citizen ban radios, two-way pagers and personal

         25  digital assistance.
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          2                 We believe this approach is too

          3  broad. The definition should focus specifically on

          4  mobile telephones that provide voice communications.

          5                 The Speaker's bill further proposes

          6  to amend the section of the Administration Code that

          7  defines the operation of the Department of

          8  Transportation, which is title 19. This section

          9  deals with more technical issues related to the

         10  usage of streets and parking.

         11                 The Mayor's bill would instead amend

         12  the section on public safety, which is title 10.

         13  Since prohibiting the use of mobile telephones by

         14  motor vehicle operators will reduce associated

         15  accident risks, it is clearly a matter of public

         16  health and safety.

         17                 Additionally, enforcement will be a

         18  Police Department responsibility, and need not

         19  involve the Department of Transportation. As such,

         20  we believe that title 10 is the most appropriate

         21  section for this issue.

         22                 Another difference between the two

         23  bills is the description of roadways on which the

         24  motorist will be prohibited from using hand-held

         25  cell phones.
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          2                 In the Speaker's bill, a motorist

          3  would be prohibited from using a hand-held cell

          4  phone on quote/unquote any street, which is an

          5  undefined term. The Mayor's bill designates the

          6  prohibited use on all quote/unquote public highways

          7  within the City of New York as defined by the

          8  State's vehicle and traffic law, as well as on

          9  private roads open to the public motor vehicle

         10  traffic.

         11                 Since the VTL definition of public

         12  highways is more inclusive, covering any highway,

         13  road, street, avenue or any other public way, we

         14  believe its use will make the final version

         15  stronger.

         16                 Regarding the definition of and the

         17  exception for authorized emergency vehicles, the

         18  Speaker's language is clear and concise and should

         19  be adopted in the final version, with one important

         20  revision: The definition should be expanded to

         21  include highway or bridge repair vehicles or other

         22  response vehicles operated by the City of New York.

         23                 Finally, the most glaring difference

         24  between the two bills lies in the range and scope of

         25  penalties. A violation of the Speaker's bill would
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          2  carry a $150 to $300 fine for a first offense and a

          3  $300 to $500 fine and/or up to ten days imprisonment

          4  for a subsequent violation within a six-month

          5  period.

          6                 The Mayor's bill would carry a fine

          7  between $50 and $150.

          8                 The Mayor strongly supports efforts

          9  to discourage cell phone use by drivers within the

         10  City, but feels that jail time is totally

         11  unwarranted for this situation.

         12                 Using a cell phone without a

         13  hands-free device should be punishable by an

         14  appropriate fine.

         15                 Not only is incarceration overly

         16  harsh, it is also inconsistent with cell phone

         17  legislation in neighboring counties. We cannot and

         18  will not support any legislation that includes

         19  incarceration as a possible punishment for this

         20  offense.

         21                 The issue of establishing uniform and

         22  consistent cell phone legislation across county

         23  lines, can be resolved by enacting statewide

         24  legislation.

         25                 As such, we urge the state to
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          2  consider the six pieces of pending legislation on

          3  this very issue. In the meantime, the City strongly

          4  supports taking this local action to reduce the risk

          5  of accidents by motorists using cell phones while

          6  driving.

          7                 As the Council is certainly aware,

          8  the City Taxi and Limousine Commission enacted its

          9  own rules regarding the use of cell phones in June

         10  of 1999. These rules prohibit the use of a telephone

         11  while operating a taxi cab, for-hire vehicle,

         12  paratransit vehicle or commuter van, unless the

         13  vehicle is legally standing or parked. It is

         14  imperative that clear and unambiguous language is

         15  included in any amendment to the Administrative Code

         16  so that it does not in any way preempt the rules

         17  that TLC promulgated prohibiting the use of cell

         18  phones by its licensees.

         19                 Cell phone use has grown

         20  significantly in the past ten years and shows no

         21  signs of slowing. Until statewide legislation is

         22  enacted, the City must take steps to protect its

         23  residents and visitors. Intros 852 and 855 represent

         24  common sense responses to the public safety concern.

         25                 The Giuliani Administration looked
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          2  forward to working with the City Council to

          3  reconcile the differences outlined above in order to

          4  develop the most practical and effective

          5  legislation. We appreciate the opportunity to

          6  testify before the Committee this morning, and we

          7  are certainly ready to answer any questions and

          8  comments you might have.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Before we go to our

         11  next speaker, I will ask the Speaker, who joins us

         12  now, the prime sponsor of this legislation.

         13                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Good morning, my

         14  colleagues. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank the

         15  Administration. The differences in the bills I'm

         16  sure we will be able to work out and get a

         17  satisfactory conclusion. I think that most of us

         18  agree that the time has come for uniformed action on

         19  a matter that is a tremendous convenience and in

         20  some cases a life saver, the use of a cell phone,

         21  button -- in some cases, unfortunately, it's the

         22  occasion of loss of life. So, there is no question

         23  in my mind that the State ought to act, as a matter

         24  of fact, there ought to be a uniform law throughout

         25  the entire country, but let's deal with our state.
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          2                 I think the piece of legislation that

          3  we both have before us will serve as a model for the

          4  State Legislature.

          5                 So, it's my intention, and the

          6  intention of the Chair on this Committee and the

          7  Council, to pass a reasonable and enforceable cell

          8  phone ban, if you will call it that, or

          9  encouragement to use it only in the safest manner

         10  possible.

         11                 So, on that we agree, and I hope that

         12  we will come to that kind of conclusion.

         13                 MR. GROTELL: Yes.

         14                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

         16                 MR. FISHNER: I don't have a prepared

         17  statement to deliver. This was a joint statement.

         18  There may be some questions about the penalties in

         19  particular later on as the questioning begins, and I

         20  would be glad to address any of those issues.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: One of the issues

         22  is that of the penalties, where we have -- the

         23  Speaker's bill is a criminal violation, where you

         24  would want a -- it should go to the Traffic Court.

         25                 First of all, do we have the
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          2  jurisdiction to enforce in Traffic Court, or that

          3  has to be to the State? Can we suggest something

          4  refer to the

          5  Traffic Court or could the state do that?

          6                 MR. FISHNER: I would say that you

          7  have the authority to send this to Traffic Court.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Is there anything

          9  now that we send to Traffic Court that we have given

         10  -- we give a violation, we can give a violation, I

         11  am questioning if we can have a legislative body

         12  authorize returnable to a Traffic Court rather than

         13  to Criminal Court?

         14                 MR. FISHNER: I actually think, I

         15  would want to look at that a little bit closer.

         16                 My impression on that is that it

         17  would -- that is something in other offenses, it's

         18  designated by state law.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I think you are

         20  right. I just realized now, because you have City --

         21  I just realized now, we have City codes, City

         22  violations, I am almost positive you may be right,

         23  but I don't know if it was enacted by the state or

         24  by regulation by the agency. I don't know about a

         25  legislative body, for us to refer someone to a
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          2  court, that's not our jurisdiction.

          3                 MR. FISHNER: Yes, typically

          4  Administrative Code violations are returnable to the

          5  Criminal Court or to other administrative bodies.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Right, okay.

          7                 Also, if the state -- first of all,

          8  do you know where the state is? Because there are

          9  all kinds of rumors where they are on legislation

         10  regarding cell --

         11                 MR. GROTELL: Well, the last thing

         12  that we heard in terms of checking the Assembly and

         13  the Senate web pages, is that there are six pieces

         14  of pending legislation before them, and, you know,

         15  that's sort of the latest that we've heard.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I mean, in a sense,

         17  are they moving forward?

         18                 MR. GROTELL: We have not heard any

         19  specific word that they are moving forward. We

         20  certainly urge them, as do you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Would you rather

         22  the state pass legislation than we should?

         23                 MR. GROTELL: I think that in lieu of

         24  the state we have to do it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I understand that.
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          2                 Now, so, we have a 90 day, if I am

          3  not mistaken, right? Or a 60-day enactment. If we

          4  see that the State is moving forward, would you also

          5  consider maybe including then the date, the

          6  six-month date, rather than a 60-day date?

          7                 MR. GROTELL: I think as long as the

          8  State legislation covers our major issues, in terms

          9  of the fines and penalties, that we would certainly

         10  consider that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I'm not really

         12  familiar, because I forgot to get a briefing from

         13  staff on this, there are counties now that passed

         14  it, and then the executive --

         15                 MR. GROTELL: Which county?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Rockland, where

         17  they vetoed it, or he didn't sign it, so it's not

         18  law.

         19                 MR. GROTELL: Right. Suffolk County is

         20  the only county in New York State that currently has

         21  the legislation. Westchester, the legislature just

         22  passed it this Monday.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: What happened to

         24  Rockland County? Do you know why the Rockland County

         25  legislators --
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          2                 MR. GROTELL: Well, it is our

          3  understanding that the County Executive again

          4  thought the penalties were too harsh.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes.

          6                 MR. GROTELL: And, you know, he

          7  decided to veto.

          8                 MR. FISHNER: The Rockland County

          9  legislation that was vetoed did include a penalty

         10  that included a possible jail sentence.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You know, I'm going

         12  to tell you, from a perspective of a driver, I know

         13  it was the front page of New York Times once, it's a

         14  story that continues to be there, which really is

         15  the thorn in the side for the driver. One thing I

         16  don't like to see is each county have regulations

         17  that are different. What happened was, if you have

         18  an aggressive police force, or the quotas, New York

         19  City has no quotas, but I'm going to say other

         20  counties all have quotas, if they have quotas of

         21  that, the police force, it hurts the motorist,

         22  because that's the easiest way to give someone a

         23  summons. And I know this story, it's called

         24  "Brooklyn Ohio," take up I think two miles on a

         25  state highway, and they make a fortune of money, it
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          2  went all the way up to the Supreme Court and they

          3  think it is okay what they're doing, they can do

          4  whatever they want, and that's where they make the

          5  money.

          6                 We don't have to do that, go out and

          7  send our police force to raise money by stopping

          8  motorists and summonsing them. But I am concerned

          9  that there is no uniformed rules within the State.

         10  So, you go over the line, if I go to Nassau County,

         11  I will have one rule, if I go to Suffolk County I

         12  have one rule, if I step over the line, you know,

         13  depending where on the

         14  Belt Parkway, I have to say which rule is coming --

         15                 MR. GROTELL: Exactly. And that's our

         16  concern as well. You know, as we have stated, there

         17  needs to be a uniform and consistent set of rules

         18  and regs.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Maybe together, we

         20  could lobby together and find out, I'm not just

         21  looking at the web pages of the State Legislature,

         22  and see if they are really serious about it. And if

         23  we feel that they are not serious about it, then of

         24  course we have the responsibility for doing

         25  something like this, you know, for safety. But on
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          2  the other hand, if they are, so we can have input on

          3  their legislation, to see if it can model really

          4  what we have to say and we could use it as an

          5  example for the legislators.

          6                 I know that there is an Assembly

          7  bill, one of my local Assemblyman, Mr. Ortiz, I

          8  don't know if he is here, but one of his aids are

          9  here, but he joined us when we announced this

         10  legislation, so I know they have the same views and

         11  I think the same intent of moving forward on

         12  legislation.

         13                 So, I hope, I understand speaking to

         14  a respected lobbyist up in the State, he told me it

         15  looks like they are moving forward because the

         16  Senate has a bill, the Senate side which they are

         17  moving forward with on the Assembly side. So, let's

         18  confirm that, and if it is true, let's work with

         19  them, that they move forward.

         20                 And if that's the case, then even if

         21  we do want to pass it, then we should put in a time

         22  limit, time frame that extends and allows for the

         23  State to come up, you know, a reasonable amount of

         24  time, if they come up with it, then, of course, then

         25  our legislation is moot, but it's okay. We started
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          2  the ball rolling on that, which is just as

          3  important.

          4                 Okay, just a few questions, Council

          5  Member Nelson.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.

          7                 Good morning, Mr. Grotell, Mr.

          8  Fishner.

          9                 MR. GROTELL: Good morning.

         10                 MR. FISHNER: Good morning.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I don't know

         12  if there is anybody in this room that hasn't been in

         13  a situation where they are crossing a street and

         14  somebody, probably a Lincoln Navigator or something

         15  heading towards them without looking at them while

         16  they had something held to their ear, so there is no

         17  question about that part. We need to be working on

         18  this, and we are.

         19                 I disagree with the Mayor on a key

         20  difference in that taking as far as other wireless

         21  communication devices, ban radios, two-way pagers,

         22  digital devices, whatever it is, it appears to me

         23  that these other communication devices are fairly

         24  distracting as well.

         25                 MR. GROTELL: Well, I would say that
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          2  they probably are distracting, but I think we have

          3  to deal with the majority of the people here and the

          4  majority have mobile telephones, and I think we

          5  should limit it specifically to the telephones.

          6                 And I think in terms of the two-way

          7  pagers, it would be very difficult to enforce, I

          8  would assume.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Oh, sure.

         10                 MR. GROTELL: But you would have the

         11  two-way pager let's say in your lap and you are just

         12  looking down, how would the police officer know what

         13  you are doing, I mean you couldn't see it. It would

         14  be a very difficult proposition.

         15                 But I think we should focus on the

         16  majority of the issue here and that is mobile

         17  telephones.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I just wanted

         19  to bring that to the floor, as well, though, because

         20  that may have to be hammered out now, too. But I do

         21  agree with the Mayor, as far as I think perhaps the

         22  fines may be a little bit too high, and as far as

         23  jailtime goes, I hate to see a mini version of the

         24  Rockefeller law for cell use.

         25                 MR. GROTELL: Right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: So, hopefully

          3  that will be hammered together, although I mean,

          4  after maybe three or four times being caught, we

          5  might be able to consider that as well. If you just

          6  have, for instance, of course, if you are very

          7  wealthy then money won't matter to you. So, that

          8  should be considered a progressive issue. But

          9  eventually, but not in the second time you get

         10  caught.

         11                 Just lastly, with just an oversight,

         12  I'm curious, as far as Intro. 855, the

         13  Administration did not provide for an exemption for

         14  emergency response personnel acting within an

         15  official capacity.

         16                 MR. GROTELL: Well, that's something

         17  that, you know, as we work together on the bills I'm

         18  sure we can address that issue.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay. Those

         20  are my main concerns. Okay, thank you.

         21                 MR. GROTELL: Sure.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

         25  Lopez.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I am not a

          3  sponsor of any of these two bills, and the reason is

          4  because I have a problem limiting the right of

          5  people to speak, and I'm very careful when we get in

          6  that arena. That's one reason.

          7                 And the second reason, I don't feel

          8  that using a cell phone, putting somebody in jail, I

          9  think that that is too harsh in place, and that I

         10  disagree with the Speaker. But I am a little bit

         11  confused by your position in regard of page two of

         12  your testimony where you are trying to make that

         13  distinction between cell phones, and all of the

         14  other devices that people use in their cars.

         15                 The fact is that independently there

         16  is few or many that use this device is irrelevant.

         17  The question is that you have to treat equally these

         18  devices, and the argument to say what you just said

         19  a few minutes ago, that the majority of the people

         20  who used the cell phones, what you are doing is

         21  establishing a double standard. Because of the

         22  majority of the people use cell phones, that's the

         23  one we are going to stop, that's your argument?

         24                 MR. GROTELL: Well, no, I think that,

         25  again, as the Council and the City work together on
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          2  this, we can certainly address any of these issues

          3  where there is differences.

          4                 But, again, the focus of our

          5  legislation that the Mayor moved forward through the

          6  Committee chair deals specifically with the

          7  telephones, but, again, we will work with you and we

          8  will try to reach a conclusion on the level of

          9  devices, or the number of devices that should be

         10  included in this legislation.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: The other

         12  question that I have is the question of the capacity

         13  to enforce the law. It doesn't matter if you are

         14  going to enforce the cell phone or the two pagers,

         15  it doesn't matter. Any one of them is going to be

         16  difficult to enforce, and that is not irrational to

         17  tell me that you are going to enforce or put a law

         18  for cell phones only and not for the other ones

         19  because it is difficult to enforce. Each one of them

         20  is going to be difficult to enforce, correct?

         21                 MR. GROTELL: Correct. I would agree

         22  with that. And, again, we are willing to work with

         23  you, and I'm sure we can reach language that we will

         24  both agree to.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: The last point
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          2  I want to make is, once you pass this kind of law,

          3  that means that you are giving license to the Police

          4  Department, state or local or whatever Police

          5  Department, to stop any motorist that is using that

          6  device, or any device, correct?

          7                 MR. GROTELL: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That is a

          9  reason right there.

         10                 MR. FISHNER: That's exactly right. If

         11  any police officer observed someone holding their

         12  phone in their hand and not using a hands-free

         13  device, there would be probable cause to stop and

         14  enforce the law.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And that

         16  probable cause can lead you to other possibilities

         17  --

         18                 MR. FISHNER: Absolutely.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Like searching

         20  the car, and so on and so on.

         21                 MR. FISHNER: There is a huge body of

         22  constitutional law on stops and searches, it depends

         23  on the facts. But, yes, there will be circumstances

         24  where police officers will see people who are

         25  violating the terms of this bill if it becomes the
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          2  law, and if they have reason to search or if they

          3  observe other illegal conduct, the police are going

          4  to act. And that's a good thing, I think we want the

          5  police to be alert when they stop someone who is

          6  violating the law.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes, it's a

          8  good thing. But it's also a bad thing when police

          9  officers start using a device as an excuse to stop

         10  people in order to search the car because they think

         11  that the person maybe is a criminal, and that also

         12  goes the other way. You know, this knife has two

         13  edges in here, and I invite my colleagues to look at

         14  this very carefully, because I am concerned that

         15  this issue, although I am a strong supporter of

         16  safety for the people in our City, the ones who are

         17  driving and the ones who are crossing the street, I

         18  also am a bigger supporter of my constitution, and I

         19  don't want nobody to mess with it and to take 14

         20  rights that I have away from me, or away from any

         21  citizen of this

         22  City.

         23                 Then I invite everybody who is

         24  looking at these two bills to be careful in the way

         25  that we are going to proceed with it.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 MR. GROTELL: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I have no other

          5  questions. Thank you very much.

          6                 MR. GROTELL: Thank you.

          7                 MR. FISHNER: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Our first witness

          9  will be Daniel Mullin from Verizon.

         10                 I guess I asked you to become first

         11  because after so many years having a lousy service

         12  with AT&T, I was so happy to hear that Verizon is

         13  here. It's the only way to say thank you, because

         14  you provide us a great service. I just for my

         15  personal, my own personal observation -- In fact I

         16  have legislation in the Council, in the Consumer

         17  Affairs Committee, in fact what I wanted was

         18  legislation which would require, because we have

         19  limited jurisdiction what we could do with you, is

         20  that it came to a point and that was my frustration

         21  and many of my constituents with some of the

         22  services, that they were just encouraging customers

         23  to come on board and they couldn't provide the

         24  service, and, so, I was going to require legislation

         25  in all stores that said that when you buy this,
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          2  there is no guarantee that you will get good

          3  service, customer satisfaction is not guaranteed.

          4                 Of course the industry would not be

          5  too happy with something like that, but I must tell

          6  you, with your service, I am glad to tell you that

          7  there is at least someone to talk to, there is

          8  someone I could always call upon and you do give

          9  exceptional service in the five boroughs.

         10                 I was disappointed with AT&T, and I

         11  am not afraid to say it, I tried to talk to

         12  executives but they thought I was just some little

         13  customer, it didn't mean anything to them. But what

         14  is interesting with AT&T was, lousy service, in

         15  Brooklyn you hardly could use them, and the second

         16  thing was, go try to talk to somebody, you get

         17  nowhere. And one thing I found with you was that at

         18  least we can come to you and at least you will

         19  listen. So, I appreciate the work that you are doing

         20  and the job you are doing. I know you are here for

         21  other reasons, and you can begin your testimony.

         22                 MR. MULLIN: I want to thank you very

         23  much for that compliment, and Verizon Wireless

         24  thanks you very much for that compliment.

         25                 Good morning. My name is Daniel
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          2  Mullin, Director of State Public Policy, Verizon

          3  Wireless. Verizon Wireless is the nation's leading

          4  wireless service provider with more than 27 million

          5  customers and over 38,000 employees. We serve 96 of

          6  the top markets in the United States, and I want to

          7  thank you for allowing me to be heard on such an

          8  important issue.

          9                 I just want to start by highlighting

         10  where we are on this issue. Verizon Wireless

         11  supports statewide hands-free legislation, and we

         12  urge the New York City Council to please not pass

         13  another local law.

         14                 Verizon Wireless prides itself as a

         15  leader in advocating responsible use of wireless

         16  phones while driving. We promote the use of

         17  hands-free devices and every facet of our business

         18  from marketing and sales to our customer

         19  communications and public policy initiatives, and we

         20  have developed a national responsible driving action

         21  plan that includes a pledge requiring handset

         22  manufacturers by 2002 to produce phones with voice

         23  activated dialing, speaker phone capability, and a

         24  two and a half millimeter jack to enable connection

         25  with universal headsets. You will notice in the
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          2  phone that I have here there is a tiny little hole

          3  in the top, that's the universal jack that we're

          4  talking about, and you could take a standard headset

          5  and plug it in. Not all phones have that. There are

          6  a lot of phones out there today that --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Shame on you. You

          8  only have that one? Why don't you have the latest

          9  phone?

         10                 MR. MULLIN: I am going to point to

         11  some items. We brought some items along so people

         12  can see what's available today and what we have in

         13  our store, what was available yesterday that doesn't

         14  have that capability and I will explain why it is

         15  important that you see these things. I will offer

         16  the opportunity, maybe after the hearing we could

         17  walk through and show you these items. We didn't

         18  want to have that get in the way of the hearing and

         19  the testimony today.

         20                 We also have a display panel in every

         21  store entitled Accessories With Safety In Mind, that

         22  makes hands-free wireless equipment readily

         23  available to customers, and you can see, this is the

         24  type of display we have back here. It's currently

         25  utilized in all Verizon Wireless stores in New York
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          2  and virtually all of the company's 1,400 stores

          3  across the country.

          4                 We are offering affordable hands-free

          5  devices at dramatically reduced prices. We are

          6  offering a network-based voice activated dialing

          7  service known as "talk dial," which requires users

          8  to press no more than two buttons to place a call.

          9                 We are incorporating a responsible

         10  driving component in our advertising and on our web

         11  site. We are training our sales and customer service

         12  teams about the importance of promoting hands-free

         13  devices, and most importantly, supporting

         14  legislation at the state level to require the use of

         15  hands-free devices while driving.

         16                 With the customer safety in mind,

         17  Verizon Wireless supports statewide hands-free

         18  legislation in New York that meets the following

         19  conditions: It must recognize the safety value of

         20  wireless devices. More than 118,000 calls are made

         21  every day across the country from wireless phones to

         22  911. It must explicitly exempt emergency calls. The

         23  State must ensure complete uniformity across the

         24  State of New York, and similar to the seat belt law,

         25  this hands-free legislation must have a three-year
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          2  phase-in period, because many wireless phones

          3  currently in use by New York consumers are not

          4  compatible with hands-free headsets, this phase-in

          5  period would allow customers to upgrade their

          6  handsets to ensure hands-free capability.

          7                 In addition, handset manufacturers

          8  need research and development time to make

          9  hands-free capability more widely available at a

         10  lower price; and, lastly, the State must not assess

         11  penalties greater than current careless driving

         12  infractions.

         13                 We are proud to be the industry

         14  leader on important issues related to responsible

         15  driving. We are equally proud to be the first in the

         16  industry to stand up and announce our support of

         17  statewide hands-free legislation. Verizon Wireless

         18  strongly believes that Statewide uniformity is

         19  critical. City, county and local laws will only

         20  serve to confuse drivers.

         21                 It's unrealistic to think that

         22  law-abiding citizens of New York City who currently

         23  own phones that are not headset compatible will

         24  immediately stop using their phones.

         25                 Immediate passage of this law in New
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          2  York City will criminalize the actions of these

          3  citizens.

          4                 A similar law was already passed in

          5  Suffolk County and several other counties are

          6  considering their own laws. These proposed laws all

          7  differ in their application and in their penalties.

          8  Such a patchwork cult of laws is not the appropriate

          9  answer. The Attorney General's Office raised serious

         10  questions about the legal authority of such laws in

         11  an opinion to Rockland County. This all points to

         12  the need for a statewide law.

         13                 To demonstrate our commitment,

         14  Verizon Wireless announces here today its support

         15  for us, 2072 by Senator Balboni, and A.917-A by

         16  Assemblyman Ortiz. These bills address the concerns

         17  raised by New York City and the need for Statewide

         18  uniformity.

         19                 They also recognize the technological

         20  and customer concerns I raised above. We applaud Mr.

         21  Vallone, the Mayor and members of the New York City

         22  Council and this Committee for bringing this issue

         23  to the forefront. Although we recognize your

         24  contribution in highlighting this very important

         25  issue, Verizon Wireless urges you not to pass the
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          2  City law to regulate the use of mobile telephones

          3  while operating a motorvehicle in New York City.

          4                 Instead, Verizon Wireless asked New

          5  York City to join us in addressing the issue of

          6  responsible driving in Albany.

          7                 Thank you for giving Verizon Wireless

          8  this opportunity to be here.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I think we have to

         10  be candid about this issue. These are good

         11  suggestions, by the way, the phase-in, the

         12  three-year phase-in, and to allow you to step up to

         13  the plate and come up with technology which will

         14  conform with safety.

         15                 The truth is why didn't the industry

         16  do this in the very beginning? Why did we have to

         17  wait for legislation to have done this.

         18                 I will give you an example, again,

         19  you guys stepped up to the plate quicker than any

         20  others. You have the Star Tech, then you came out

         21  with the V phone. So, you came out with hands-free

         22  kit for cars almost immediately. With other brands,

         23  like Nokea phones (phonetic), which are used by

         24  others, they are still waiting for it, they came out

         25  with a small phone before you came out with the V
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          2  phone, and you still can't even find a kit for the

          3  car.

          4                 And then also another thing about the

          5  kit for the car is a very expensive deal. I think

          6  now with the V phone it is a little cheaper, it's a

          7  little better. I'm not -- I think I paid less than

          8  for the Star Tech. But the question is, why didn't

          9  you come up with this? And if you didn't why aren't

         10  we moving forward? I know you don't represent the

         11  manufacturers of the phones, but you have a lot to

         12  say because you used their particular phones, you

         13  make a deal with them.

         14                 Why can't we push to come up

         15  immediately with a package that will encourage you?

         16                 I mean, basically for a few dollars

         17  more, you can get your car, you know, hands-free in

         18  the car.

         19                 And the other thing is, I understand

         20  from my counsel now, I mean today we are sending

         21  people to the moon, why we can't come up with a

         22  phone, I don't understand. They are coming out with

         23  a chip that's going to go into the phone that can be

         24  used as a hands-free when you just attach it to the

         25  car.
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          2                 So, why are we not moving quick

          3  enough and not doing these things so we don't need

          4  this legislation, so it's safe without legislation?

          5                 MR. MULLIN: I feel all sales, all new

          6  sales today, all Verizon Wireless phones that are

          7  sold today are hands-free capable in one form or

          8  another, either you can plug in a headset, you can

          9  have a car kit or perhaps they are adaptable to the

         10  point where you can plug something into the

         11  cigarette lighter and allow hands-free capability.

         12                 So, I do believe we are there, and as

         13  you heard in the first part of my testimony, we have

         14  asked the manufacturers, we are pushing

         15  manufacturers to include the standard jack in the

         16  phone and the hands-free car kits.

         17                 I think what's happening is the

         18  quality of this is improving as we move forward.

         19                 My headset, for example, when I use

         20  it with my phone, it's very good, it's very clear

         21  and provides an affordable way to use the phone.

         22                 The problem is the history. There are

         23  a lot of phones customers have bought over the

         24  period of the last 12 years that don't have this

         25  capability, and there is a cost issue. We don't want
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          2  those customers to be forced to, if a law passes

          3  tomorrow, they are forced to go out and get

          4  something, they are forced to go out and change

          5  their equipment.

          6                 A lot of the phones that are out

          7  there that don't have that capability are the cost

          8  conscious customers who we are looking to look for

          9  sort of a low budget phone, and the new phones, all

         10  the new phones, even the lower end phones, all have

         11  the capability now, so when their contract renews or

         12  when they are able to go in and get another phone,

         13  it will be easier and more affordable for them to do

         14  that, and, by the way, the quality improves.

         15                 Over time I think we have all seen,

         16  even with the car kits, the voice quality, and it is

         17  like a speaker phone on a table and in an office,

         18  even those haven't been perfected to a large extent

         19  today.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: The other thing is,

         21  you really don't make the money on the phone itself,

         22  the phone is really, sometimes you give it away

         23  almost. It is really the usage of the phone, so

         24  wouldn't the -- I know it is an expensive deal,

         25  maybe we should look towards giving it, the same way
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          2  you give away the phones at a reduced rate, but are

          3  using obviously your service, to do the same thing

          4  for car kits, to make sure that people install them?

          5                 MR. MULLIN: We are doing that. And we

          6  often have promotions where, you know, far reduced

          7  prices on the headsets, the earbuds (phonetic) and

          8  the car kits, so we are actively pursuing that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.

         10                 MR. MULLIN: We do do that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I understand also,

         12  you know, because of this new technology a lot of

         13  people made a big issue, I know sitting from your

         14  perspective saying, hey, this is no different

         15  speaking on the telephone than switching the disk in

         16  your car and trying to look for a disk that you

         17  want, that you took out, and I'm guilty of the same,

         18  like anybody else, it is probably far more dangerous

         19  than trying to figure out how to hold your phone and

         20  to drive in one hand and drive the phone.

         21                 I understand from your perspective,

         22  but the truth is that, you know, it is one less

         23  hazard, you know we can't bend, we can't make a rule

         24  that your two hands have to be on the steering wheel

         25  and you can't do anything else, and you have to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  concentrate only on driving. We have to encourage it

          3  by education rather than by law, and that's from my

          4  own perspective, I understand that we have to start

          5  somewhere, and I would hope, and I would agree with

          6  you, that you do uniformity, it is necessary,

          7  absolutely.

          8                 And I would hope, that's why we

          9  didn't rush into this and didn't move forward as

         10  soon as we announced it, we are hoping as we take

         11  these steps that the state will enact a law and it

         12  looks like it's happening. First we announced it,

         13  there was not even talk about legislation, now there

         14  is serious talk about legislation, and I would hope

         15  that they would act before we do, but we started the

         16  ball rolling on this.

         17                 MR. MULLIN: We very much appreciate

         18  your consideration of looking to see what Albany

         19  does, help us push the company along, we are there,

         20  we would like to see it happen there, rather than

         21  the patchwork quilt that I was talking about.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And I also would

         24  think, I know that you have been doing some very

         25  interesting advertisements, encouraging safety,
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          2  just, you know, I would hope you would learn that --

          3  I can't compare you to two different industries, if

          4  the tobacco industry had done the same thing you

          5  have done at the very beginning, things wouldn't be

          6  where it is today. We wouldn't be coming after them

          7  like we were, you know, they were the villains or

          8  something like that. And this is a necessary,

          9  obviously necessary for all of us and it's a safety

         10  issue, too. I have to tell you, I can't believe, you

         11  know, if you look back perspective 20 years ago from

         12  what we are today, I feel safer if I give my

         13  children a cell phone, I don't mind them going out a

         14  little later as long as they are in touch with us,

         15  then I know I could reach them. It's very, very

         16  important, it's helped a lot our society and our

         17  world.

         18                 But just like anything else, there is

         19  abuse so we have to work on it, and I would hope and

         20  I know that you are serious about it, and I think

         21  the key is in your hands, because if you encourage

         22  it more, we could pass all the laws we want, but if

         23  you encourage it by the advertisements and the

         24  give-aways and big signs and the public service

         25  announcement, please be careful, don't use a cell
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          2  phone while driving so you have hands-free, and this

          3  type of education I think is very, very important

          4  and you could be the key to this, you are very

          5  important to us, and I want to thank you.

          6                 I do want to acknowledge, and I am

          7  one that acknowledges people when they work with us,

          8  it's important to say thank you. Maybe it's my

          9  upbringing, but this is very important to me, and I

         10  know he is in the audience here, and he is a member

         11  of Verizon as well, is Frank McLaughlin.

         12                 I just wanted to say, Frank, thank

         13  you, because every time our office, I know from our

         14  office the other legislators call you, you are there

         15  to respond immediately. Thank you, Frank, for all

         16  the work you do.

         17                 MR. MULLIN: Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

         19  Nelson.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I was going to

         21  say, you do provide great service, but I think

         22  between you and Cablevision, you own half your own

         23  world, and Teddy Roosevelt is rolling over

         24  somewhere's, but based upon that, and you are state

         25  of the art, as far as my experience, my friends, I
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          2  agree with Noach in this respect, too. That on a

          3  voluntary basis perhaps you should consider, I would

          4  like you to consider, a trade in at cost or perhaps

          5  even lower than that at best, because I disagree

          6  with the three-year phase-in period, I don't see

          7  that happening, I don't see that as responsible

          8  overall. However, I do agree with most of your

          9  statements, and especially, which I mentioned

         10  before, you brought up the penalties. It shouldn't

         11  be greater than the current careless driving

         12  penalties. So, we agree upon much and I am sure we

         13  will hammer out something that is best and safest

         14  for the population of the entire state going uniform

         15  as well.

         16                 MR. MULLIN: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.

         18                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: There are no other

         20  questions.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 MR. MULLIN: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: The next group I

         24  will bring up is a panel of provider services.

         25                 John Liantonio, from AT&T. Martin
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          2  Rothfelder from Nextel. Jamie Hastings from Voice

          3  Stream. And Carey Hinton, from Sprint.

          4                 Whoever wants to start it's okay.

          5                 Good morning. Just press the button

          6  in. Identify yourself for the record.

          7                 MS. HASTINGS: Good morning, Mr.

          8  Chair, and members of the Committee. My name is

          9  Jamie Hastings, I am Director of Government Affairs

         10  for Voice Stream Wireless. I am here today with, as

         11  you mentioned, Carey Hinton, representing Sprint

         12  PCS, John Liantonio from AT&T Wireless, Marty

         13  Rothfelder from the Rothfelder Law Offices,

         14  representing Nextel Communications.

         15                 As you all know, we are all fierce

         16  competitors in the marketplace; however, we come

         17  here today because we share a common goal, and that

         18  is the responsible use of wireless phones when

         19  operating a motor vehicle, and we certainly commend

         20  the Committee for taking up this most important

         21  issue and Speaker Vallone.

         22                 Everyone has a story to tell about

         23  wireless phones, some good, some bad. You hear them

         24  ringing at restaurants, you hear them ringing at

         25  Broadway shows, and the most onerous and most
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          2  disturbing is seeing somebody operating a motor

          3  vehicle irresponsibly because they are using their

          4  wireless phone.

          5                 I want to share with you, and Speaker

          6  Vallone referred to it a little bit, about the other

          7  story about wireless phones, safety benefits of

          8  wireless phones, and you, also Mr. Chair, noted that

          9  in this country today over 118,000 calls will be

         10  made from wireless phones to access emergency

         11  services. Those calls are being made not only by

         12  people who require assistance, but also by their

         13  friends, their neighbors, people who don't even know

         14  them, people who are good samaritans, people who we

         15  call our wireless heroes, people across the nation

         16  who have stories to tell about how they used their

         17  phones to save lives to make a difference in their

         18  community. And it's not just about accessing

         19  emergency services.

         20                 Our customers are reporting drunk and

         21  aggressive drivers and other incidents along the

         22  highway.

         23                 In addition to making those emergency

         24  phone calls, we give people peace of mind on the

         25  roadways, business people, and I know, I think we
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          2  all probably have a story to share about this, I

          3  certainly do have personal experiences, where you

          4  are running late for a meeting when you are driving,

          5  and you are trying to make up time on the road, and

          6  may not be operating the vehicle in the most

          7  responsive fashion, you call ahead, let the other

          8  attendees in the meeting know that you are going to

          9  be late and they say relax, you know, we are running

         10  late ourselves. So you can sit back, concentrate on

         11  operating your motorvehicle in a responsible

         12  fashion. Parents picking up children, letting them

         13  know that they are running a little bit late. These

         14  are the kinds of stories that we want to share with

         15  you, because we recognize that motorists have a lot

         16  of distractions when they get behind the wheel of a

         17  motorvehicle. You referred to some of them, Mr.

         18  Chairman, and there are a wealth of them, one of

         19  them, the wireless phone saves lives, and I would

         20  like you to consider that when you consider this

         21  legislation.

         22                 You talked a lot about the handset

         23  replacement issue, and Mr. Hinton from Sprint PCS is

         24  going to talk about that in more detail, but we want

         25  you to consider that there are people who have
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          2  handsets out there who will not be able to drive and

          3  enjoy these safety benefits and this peace of mind

          4  with the immediate imposition of a hands-free bill,

          5  such as the two that you are considering today.

          6                 Thank you for your time. I am now

          7  going to turn it over to Mr. Hinton from Sprint PCS.

          8                 MR. HINTON: Thank you, Chairman Dear,

          9  members of the Committee. My name is Cary Hinton, I

         10  am Regional Director for State and Local Government

         11  Affairs for Sprint Corporation. I am representing

         12  our wireless division, which is the more commonly

         13  known as Sprint PCS, and the State, how happy I am

         14  to appear with the Verizon Sales Office to testify

         15  on this significant issue.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I must tell you,

         17  you are in equal competition, at least in my area. I

         18  know the stores -- I am up to date about these

         19  things, I hear it from the stores there, and they

         20  also tell me Sprint, they are pushing Sprint there,

         21  and they are doing a good job, obviously they are

         22  providing a service, and they are very happy with

         23  it, at least in my area.

         24                 MR. HINTON: That's good to hear.

         25                 What I would like to address really
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          2  is kind of the practical problems with these two

          3  bills that are pending before you, which Ms.

          4  Hastings referred to and also others referred to and

          5  Mr. Mullin.

          6                 There is frankly a real practical

          7  problem relative to the industry to be able to

          8  assist in the implementation of any such legislation

          9  of this type, as well as a practical problem for the

         10  public at large.

         11                 Nationwide penetration rights for the

         12  industry now running at approximately 40 percent of

         13  the public have wireless service. We extrapolate

         14  that then to New York City, that gives us nearly 3

         15  million customers of wireless service customers here

         16  in New York City, and then, of course, if we add in

         17  users that come into this City from neighboring

         18  counties, neighboring states, even foreign

         19  travelers, that number could be significantly

         20  greater.

         21                 So, in effect we are talking about

         22  well over 3 million subscribers that are operating,

         23  as you say, that are utilizing services in the New

         24  York City area. But only approximately 40 percent of

         25  the phones that have been sold to date are adaptable
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          2  to hands for use.

          3                 As Mr. Mullin has referred to, not

          4  all phones that are out there currently have the

          5  jack. One of the reasons why is companies such as

          6  Mr. Mullin's have been in operation for over a

          7  decade, that have been selling phones for a long

          8  time, many of which are still in use, and don't have

          9  the adaptability.

         10                 Even for a new company such as Sprint

         11  PCS, and we have been operating it in New York City

         12  for less than four years. But it wasn't until late

         13  1999 that we were able to obtain sources from all

         14  the manufacturers to ensure that all the phones we

         15  sold had the adaptability for hands for use, so we

         16  had in effect sales of significant number of phones

         17  that were not adaptable.

         18                 Fortunately now all of our phones are

         19  adaptable, and of course we encourage our customers

         20  when they purchase a phone to also purchase whether

         21  it be an ear mike or some other type of hands-free

         22  industry to go with their phone when they purchase

         23  it from us or from one of our partners such as Radio

         24  Shack. But, again, the problem is you've got 40

         25  percent, which is well over a million phones that
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          2  are in the New York City area that are not

          3  adaptable.

          4                 That's going to impose a cost on

          5  consumers to be able to comply with this

          6  legislation, and I might point out that both bills

          7  have an effective date of 60 days, so there is

          8  apparently an expectation by the sponsors that over

          9  a million people that currently have wireless

         10  service in New York City would either go out and buy

         11  a new phone or would go out and buy an adapter to an

         12  existing phone that they have. Approximately ten

         13  percent of the phones that are currently in use are

         14  also accompanied by hands-free kits; so we have two

         15  dilemmas; one is, the phones that are not currently

         16  adaptable, and then the other dilemma is the number

         17  of people that have bought phones previously that do

         18  not have hands-free kits already.

         19                 That's going to create two problems

         20  for us; one is, the ability to be able to acquire,

         21  whether it be Sprint PCS stores or Radio Shack

         22  stores, or, frankly, any of our competitors to be

         23  able to acquire the quantity of new phones that

         24  would be necessary for replacement of the existing

         25  number of phones that are not adaptable, and to be
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          2  able to acquire the volume of handsets that would be

          3  necessary, all within the next 60 days.

          4                 I'm sure any of you that have worked

          5  in a business know the problems of being able to

          6  acquire products from manufacturers, since none of

          7  us manufacturer this equipment, or these phones

          8  ourselves, but to be able to acquire those from

          9  other manufacturers on a short-time basis, will of

         10  course be virtually impossible, if not ridiculous.

         11                 But as I noted, there is a cost to

         12  consumers, being able to purchase a phone. Average

         13  price of a new phone, including a handset,

         14  approximately $150. Some are less. I went into, for

         15  example, a Sprint PCS store yesterday, we have a

         16  closeout on some old phones you can get for $60,

         17  $59.99. But top phones, the ones that have wireless

         18  web service, such as this phone, this one,

         19  incidentally is also speaker phone capable, and I

         20  would note parenthetically that under both bills

         21  this phone would not be in compliance. I could not

         22  use a speaker phone in my car in the City unless I

         23  also hooked up an ear mike to it or some other

         24  speaker adaptable, because it only addresses adding

         25  on something to a phone.
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          2                 The total cost, replacement of new

          3  phones, adding on adapters, we are talking in excess

          4  of $200 million in cost to the public, assuming that

          5  everyone complied with this law. Now, that's a big

          6  assumption. Now, I suggest to you that there are

          7  three results that are going to occur if this

          8  legislation is passed or compromised between the two

          9  bills, is passed along these lines.

         10                 The first potential outcome is, yes,

         11  people will go in to buy a new phone, to buy an

         12  adapter, and will probably find out that it is

         13  either not there to their suiting, or there is going

         14  to be a back order delay that they will have to

         15  wait.

         16                 The second likely outcome is that

         17  people will leave their phones at home or leave them

         18  in their purses or in their briefcases and not have

         19  them available to them while they are driving even

         20  in a safe manner to be able to make the safety call,

         21  such as Ms. Hastings mentioned, is so important to

         22  members of the public.

         23                 The third outcome is people will

         24  violate the law. It's not uncommon for people to

         25  violate simple traffic laws. Just driving in here
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          2  today I could count literally hundreds, if not

          3  thousands of people that were violating Jay Walking

          4  laws. I suggest to you that this law is going to

          5  have a similar type of response from the public. So,

          6  you are going to have a significant enforcement

          7  problem, not to mention the enforcement problems

          8  that were mentioned by Council Member Ortiz.

          9                 I would suggest in closing that it is

         10  not necessary to criminalize this activity, and as

         11  will be mentioned by my compatriot from AT&T

         12  Wireless, that education is really the solution

         13  here.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Just a few

         15  comments, because I couldn't let you continue

         16  without responding to them.

         17                 First of all, you have to assume that

         18  all of those million people are drivers that will be

         19  driving. That's number one, and I don't think that

         20  number is that -- from those people that you have,

         21  they are going to be the ones that are going to be

         22  driving and have to use it.

         23                 Number two, no one forces you to use

         24  your phone during driving.

         25                 Just like there are times, as you
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          2  said that you are not going to be able to use your

          3  phone, there are times I would hope that people

          4  would understand, any church service or any

          5  restaurants which people are using, obviously I have

          6  now seen a new ban on cells in restaurants - don't

          7  worry, we're not going to pass that legislation, but

          8  it is coming to a point the restaurants are doing

          9  that, and other places where, you know, you go to

         10  sleep, you shut your phone off, I hope. Some people

         11  probably not.

         12                 So, it's not like a necessity, and if

         13  it is, there is an exemption for that. For that,

         14  exactly what you raised before, you talked about the

         15  heroes of people who saved lives, that will be the

         16  exception, and in the law it says, if it's an

         17  emergency you can. And what stops you from moving

         18  over to the side of the road for that second, and

         19  that you have to take a phone call.

         20                 So, I disagree with you with that,

         21  and I think what we have to realistically look at is

         22  what can we do to make it safer.

         23                 What I was so intrigued, is that

         24  traveling to Israel, and you wouldn't say that

         25  Israel would be in the forefront of the latest
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          2  legislation of technology in the world, and yet they

          3  are (a) for cell phone use, I understand per capita

          4  they are the biggest cell phone users there is in

          5  the entire world. Number two, they saw it as a

          6  safety issue, and I want to tell you, they take it

          7  seriously. It's $500 or equivalent to their money,

          8  for any time you are caught with a cell phone use,

          9  that's all. No one cared. They put in that law in in

         10  days, it's already now two to three years old, that

         11  law, and people are abiding by it. And if it is an

         12  emergency, I'm sure they have some exceptions.

         13                 So, I think more that, believe me, I

         14  don't want to pass such a legislation, I am not one

         15  of those that I like to pass legislation to start

         16  banning way of people's lives, I am as sensitive to

         17  these things, especially when it comes to motorists,

         18  because motorists are people that are continuously

         19  dumped on. Every time you want to put a tax, it's

         20  the motorist. Every time you want to do something, a

         21  new law, do it to the motorist, and it just goes on

         22  and on and on. So, I am sensitive to that. I was

         23  really hoping, and that's why I'm taking my time

         24  with this, I was hoping that there would be state

         25  legislation for this, so there would be a statewide
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          2  ban and uniformity and also reasonableness, and I

          3  will take that into consideration. There was

          4  testimony, and I hear it from you and I hear it from

          5  the others, and that's something we have to look at.

          6  Absolutely we need a phase-in time. But I hope also

          7  that your industry, like I said to the Verizon

          8  person, that your industry begins to take the steps

          9  to make those changes. Because with technology, you

         10  know, you are talking about those million phones

         11  that don't even have that adapter to put in an ear

         12  piece, I am sure those phones are so old if they

         13  wanted to even buy them again, they're not even

         14  available. And in most cases, or if not, we are

         15  changing technology so fast that it's not difficult

         16  for you to produce that or produce that in a way,

         17  and I hope you guys do it, instead of making us be

         18  the ones to enforce such a, enact such laws.

         19                 MR. HINTON: Let me just respond to

         20  just one point.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Sure.

         22                 MR. HINTON: Because you raised

         23  several of them, and I know Ms. Hastings wanted to

         24  respond to one.

         25                 You mentioned the technology issue.
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          2  As I pointed out, Sprint PCS, which is a relative

          3  new-comer to the market here in New York City, it

          4  has been less than two years that we have even been

          5  able to acquire from the manufacturers all phones

          6  that have adaptability, but you are exactly right

          7  that technology is improving.

          8                 Mr. Mullin has referred to some of

          9  their equipment as being voice command capable,

         10  Sprint PCS is the first carrier in the market, is

         11  able to offer to all of our customers, irrespective

         12  of what type of phone they have got, voice command

         13  service, voice activation service.

         14                 Your legislation, frankly, implies

         15  that may in fact be necessary in order to keep both

         16  hands on the wheel. That's frankly an ambiguity,

         17  perhaps if you are suggesting that all wireless

         18  users should have this command service, that might

         19  be good for our business, I don't think that is your

         20  intent and --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Why did you look

         22  into that fact? See --

         23                 MR. HINTON: Again, my point is that

         24  technology is advancing --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I agree.
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          2                 MR. HINTON: And what you're trying to

          3  address here is not practical on an immediate time

          4  frame.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, we will -- I

          6  will say this: I will do the best I can to make it

          7  practical, and the real practicality is, and the

          8  real way it should go is I hope that the State

          9  really does it. I hope that you could work with us

         10  to the state so all of those issues are raised, that

         11  we hope that they can pass it as well.

         12                 Okay, go ahead.

         13                 Council Member Lopez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can you tell me

         15  when you project that the technology will be

         16  rectified to resolve this problem once and for all

         17  in regard of not having to use the hands when you

         18  utilize this device?

         19                 MR. HINTON: The estimates with the

         20  industry, I think as Mr. Mullin was referring to, is

         21  a three-year time frame that there would be a

         22  significant enough turnover amongst customers coming

         23  in to get new phones, and of course all the phones

         24  that Sprint PCS are selling and will continue to

         25  sell are adaptable.
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          2                 So, our at least market projections,

          3  by us offering new services, to entice customers to

          4  come in to get wireless web services, to get other

          5  types of features with their cell phones that they

          6  currently cannot get with phones that they bought

          7  from us two years ago, but through those types of

          8  market enticements, that we expect within three

          9  years will be a significant enough, a major shift in

         10  the number of phones that are in the marketplace

         11  that are thereby hands-free adaptable and voice

         12  command, or voice activation.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Mr. Chairman,

         14  you see, what I'm seeing in this hearing is that we

         15  are doing this backwards.

         16                 Here we have consumers who have been

         17  buying these devices, these telephones, that were

         18  not occupied to protect the safety of people. Then

         19  what happened is that now we are going to

         20  criminalize the people who use it for buying a

         21  product that to begin with should never be sold to

         22  the people, because it was on safety.

         23                 If we get a baby carriage that kills

         24  babies, immediately the recall of those particular

         25  pieces of equipment that was sold to the people will
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          2  be recalled, but in this case what we are doing is

          3  trying to pass legislation that criminalize the

          4  consumer, that made them pay more money over the

          5  amount of money that they already paid for what they

          6  bought. And now they have to buy new phones in order

          7  to comply with a law that we are putting in place,

          8  and on top of that we are infringing in the

          9  constitution, trying to pose the Police Department

         10  to stop people from using this phone, giving the

         11  opportunity to detain them and violate their

         12  constitutional rights. That's what I see this piece

         13  of legislation is doing. Where we need to go is in

         14  the direction of stopping the cell phones that are

         15  not occupied with the kind of mechanism that we need

         16  to protect the public.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I hear you, and

         18  these issues are being raised by all of us here,

         19  too. That's why we are not passing it today. And

         20  we're taking input from the industry, as well as

         21  input from the public, and we hope to come up with

         22  something, and the real hope is that the state will

         23  come up with some bill, just like this will be

         24  uniformed around the state. But, obviously, safety

         25  is a very important issue.
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          2                 And there is another issue that has

          3  to be raised. Not all the people that buy phones

          4  have cars and use it in cars. Don't forget it's the

          5  drivers, it's not the people driving in the car, not

          6  the passengers, it's the driver themselves. And that

          7  obviously is a smaller number, and we are concerned

          8  about public safety. I mean, there was a story just

          9  a few months ago of a gentleman who, I don't know

         10  what the final story was, but I remember the initial

         11  reports, an elderly gentleman mowed over some people

         12  in Queens, and the first report was that he was on

         13  his telephone, a cell phone. So, what I don't want

         14  to see is anyone getting hurt.

         15                 So, I think we have to look at this

         16  and go cautiously, and, obviously, these concerns

         17  that you have, Council Member, should be included in

         18  our legislation.

         19                 Council Member Miller.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chairman.

         22                 You know, the Question I had -- well,

         23  first of all, Mr. Hinton, it is nice to see you. Mr.

         24  Hinton and I have a long -- I am a Sprint PCS

         25  customer, and we had some difficulty in sorting out
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          2  billing, and --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Did they take care

          4  of you? I just want to know.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Mr. Hinton was

          6  very helpful. When I finally got to Mr. Hinton

          7  things were good. For a long time before Mr. Hinton

          8  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: If I just can

         10  interrupt? When I expressed my frustration before,

         11  it is because we don't have that many times to

         12  express our frustration to the people. You can

         13  imagine when you have a problem with a company, you

         14  know, tell them you want to speak to the president,

         15  you never get to the CEO, and multiply that by the

         16  customers, our constituents coming to us with these

         17  problems, this is an unbelievable opportunity and

         18  I'm glad that we are able to recognize those who are

         19  helpful, and to express our difficulty or

         20  dissatisfaction with those --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I actually had

         22  drafted a really long letter to the Chairman of

         23  Sprint, and it was right at that time that finally

         24  Mr. Hinton called me and I was never able to send

         25  the letter because Mr. Hinton was able to address
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          2  ultimately my concerns.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then I need

          4  your card.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Yes, I

          6  recommend him.

          7                 But let me just ask this question

          8  with regard to the placement of funds. Actually my

          9  wife, in order to be fair, is an AT&T customer,

         10  actually under my name, and she lost her phone,

         11  because when you give a phone to somebody you have

         12  to sign up under your name, so it's her phone but

         13  it's in my name, so I'm the holder of the account.

         14  She lost her phone and AT&T sent her a new phone for

         15  like, I think it was free actually. She lost her

         16  phone and we called and said we lost your phone, and

         17  they said, oh, okay, we have a deal this week with

         18  such and such phone, we will send you a new phone,

         19  they Fed Ex'd it to us and we had a new phone.

         20                 Now, her phone was a pretty old

         21  phone, and the new phone was fully compliant with

         22  handset, and I don't mean to single out in

         23  particular, it's just my experience, I'm sure all of

         24  you guys run these kinds of deals because you know

         25  if your customer loses your phone, they are just as
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          2  likely to sign up with somebody else as they are to

          3  sign up with you and you want to keep them with a

          4  customer, so you I'm sure all have cut rate deals

          5  which enable people to get new phones in order to

          6  keep them as customers. So, the question that I have

          7  then is, why can't there be more aggressive -- I

          8  mean, I would say to the public out there, if you

          9  have a phone that doesn't have a handset, you know,

         10  lose it and then call your customer, call your

         11  company and, you know, leave it at the movie theatre

         12  or forget it somewhere and then call your company

         13  and say I lost my phone, I need a new one, and you

         14  know what? You will get a new one at a pretty good

         15  rate and they might even Fed Ex it to you and you

         16  will have it the next day.

         17                 But in seriousness, the question is

         18  why can't -- I mean, sure you guys must have the

         19  technology to know what phones are, or what kind of

         20  a phone is being operated, and if you have the

         21  technology to know what kind of phone is being

         22  operated, you must have the technology to know which

         23  ones are handset capable and which ones are not

         24  handset capable.

         25                 And if you can do that, then why
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          2  can't you take all those phones which are not

          3  handset capable, and say, you know, we are serious

          4  about retaining your business and we are serious

          5  about safety and reach out to those people and give

          6  them, you know, at least an aggressive opportunity,

          7  you know, if not for free, or maybe, you know, I

          8  think Council Member Lopez makes a good point with

          9  regard to recall and safety, but at least be

         10  reaching out to these people to give them a swift

         11  opportunity.

         12                 Because I know a lot of people, my

         13  mother in law has a phone that I can't even believe,

         14  it's like the size of that picture, she carries it

         15  around still, and I said, lose it and call your

         16  company and they will send you a new one and she

         17  never got around to it and wasn't aware that that

         18  was a possibility. But you should be reaching out to

         19  these people, you know who they are, you should be

         20  reaching out. And this is not the only local area in

         21  the country which is considering this, as we know

         22  not just in New York State, but I'm sure, you know,

         23  you guys were spending half your time attending

         24  state capitals around the country, testifying

         25  largely in the same capacity, why can't you be
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          2  undertaking that kind of an effort? And if you are,

          3  why should it take three years? I mean, if I was

          4  holding a really old phone and my company called me

          5  and said, hey, for five bucks or ten bucks I will

          6  give you a brand new phone that is smaller, lighter

          7  and gets better reception, you know, I mean most

          8  people would take advantage of that in a heartbeat.

          9  So, why should it take three years?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: The truth in all

         11  fairness, before we get to -- I mean, I still have

         12  two more panelists, and, you know, I don't want them

         13  to feel left out in any way, so go ahead, do you

         14  want to respond quickly? I am just saying, I said

         15  that before, but, okay, it's a repeat. Go ahead.

         16                 MR. HINTON: I will respond very

         17  quickly.

         18                 One clarification is, I don't think

         19  any of the carriers have a database that's capable

         20  of being able to identify which phone someone is

         21  using, other than the fact than we know it's a

         22  Sprint PCS phone, and we know whether they have

         23  subscribed, for example, to a wireless service, but

         24  we can't tell specifically whether which model -- I

         25  know this may seem incredible to you, but --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I know that you

          3  know which one it is because you have to register --

          4                 MR. HINTON: Frankly, once they obtain

          5  a Sprint PCS phone from one of our stores, and it is

          6  activated, that's all that's relevant to us, that it

          7  is an activated account and which services they are

          8  subscribed to utilize. It doesn't make any

          9  difference whether it is a Samsung, Nokia, or

         10  Motorola phone that they have purchased from one of

         11  our stores, as long as it has been activated in an

         12  appropriate fashion.

         13                 I will respond to the second issue

         14  regarding the speed.

         15                 Let me be clear. We don't manufacture

         16  these phones. We don't manufacture these. We are not

         17  talking about the automobile industry when you are

         18  implementing seatbelt restraint laws which

         19  manufactured the cars, manufactured the seatbelts

         20  and were able to install the seatbelts in the cars.

         21                 The same thing goes with airbags for

         22  the auto industry. We are not in that position of

         23  being able to make production faster and to make it

         24  cheaper. We have to buy these. I would assume that

         25  for all of our competitors, just like for Sprint
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          2  PCS, we lose money every time we sell one of these

          3  to a customer. The only way we make the money back

          4  is by them continuing to use it.

          5                 So, frankly, if we want to encourage

          6  on a very broad rapid scale, people who are coming

          7  in and buying new phones, we are going to lose a

          8  significant amount of money. The only way to make

          9  that up then is to increase the rates.

         10                 I would suggest there is another

         11  alternative, and, frankly, this alternative has been

         12  discussed, although it's not embodied in the

         13  legislation yet, but it has been discussed in

         14  Albany, and that is to give a tax credit to

         15  consumers to turn in old phones or to get new

         16  phones. Would the City be willing to subsidize that?

         17  I suspect not. But understand that it is a

         18  significant cost and it's going to have to be borne

         19  by the consumers in one fashion or another if you

         20  enact this type of legislation.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

         22  Nelson, and then we will get to the other two

         23  panelists.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: So they're

         25  dangerous at any decibel level. You know, that
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          2  nato-like effect in the industry.

          3                 You make realistic sense, you do, in

          4  what you say, enforcement, forgetfulness, et cetera.

          5  And I would like to say, I love this thing. I'm

          6  thinking about prenup, okay? I get very important

          7  information from this. I am an exponent of the

          8  adage, too, that your right to swing out

          9  distance-wise as well ends where the tip of my nose

         10  begins, and it's really what we're seeing here right

         11  now, it puts people's lives in danger. And, again,

         12  as I mentioned before, with the Lincoln Navigators

         13  or whatever it is, these huge things coming at you

         14  and it's like a movie, two movies: One is like it is

         15  like Night of the Living Dead, if you see some of

         16  their expressions, and you're like the Invisible Man

         17  or woman, as the case may be.

         18                 This is why there has to be a lot

         19  done, a lot more, and again, the three years is

         20  unacceptable overall and I just wanted to bring that

         21  up.

         22                 It may not be the greatest system

         23  overall, what we are doing, or the greatest intro we

         24  will come up with, but like democracy, it may be

         25  frustrating but it is going to be the best system
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          2  known at this time.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Could we continue?

          5  Thank you.

          6                 MR. LIANTONIO: Good morning,

          7  Chairman, members of the Committee. I am from

          8  everyone's second favorite company, that would be

          9  AT&T Wireless. John Liantonio, Director of the

         10  External Affairs of the Northeast.

         11                 I'm here today to talk about one

         12  particular topic in this panel and that would be the

         13  education needs and efforts that all the companies

         14  need to participate in and are participating in, as

         15  well as our national association, for the record,

         16  the Cellular Telecommunications Internet

         17  Association, CTIA.

         18                 The Harvard Center for Risk Analysis

         19  recommends that "government and industries should

         20  encourage more selective and prudent use of cellular

         21  phones while driving through vigorous public

         22  education programs. And I know my colleagues here on

         23  this panel, as well as Mr. Mullin's company, have

         24  all stepped up to the plate on this. And, yes, it

         25  has started slowly, but then again, the industry is
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          2  still brand new and has also become very popular in

          3  the last five years. But I think we are all making

          4  very strong efforts in the education of our

          5  customers' arena.

          6                 For instance, one important way we do

          7  this is through advertising. All of our regular

          8  print ads, if you will notice, all have reminders

          9  about the need to be very responsible while using

         10  such devices while driving.

         11                 I believe that you see a lot of

         12  outdoor advertising, maybe not here in the City but

         13  in various other places you will see a lot of

         14  billboard advertising, and as well you will be

         15  hearing radio traffic sponsorships.

         16                 I know my company does that and I'm

         17  sure in other places you will hear some similar

         18  types of constant reminders.

         19                 Part of this effort is to constantly

         20  remind the public of the need to be safe.

         21                 I think there is a lack of

         22  understanding when people get behind the wheel of

         23  these new toys, if you will, and begin to realize

         24  that they can do just about anything on these

         25  phones, and they forget that their main and most
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          2  important job is safe driving. So, I think there is

          3  a need to remind the public, and through advertising

          4  we do that.

          5                 We do that through customer education

          6  as well. When you call up, and unfortunately you may

          7  have to be on hold for awhile, you will be hearing

          8  these messages reminding you of responsible use and

          9  safe driving while using a phone.

         10                 You will also be inundated with paper

         11  when you sign up for service, reminding you of the

         12  importance of safe driving. You will also be

         13  inundated with information with all of the things

         14  that Mr. Hinton was just referring to in terms of

         15  the hands-free devices now available for many of the

         16  phones, if not all of the phones today.

         17                 Every customer gets brochures when

         18  they open up the box that contains the phone. If

         19  they were read, they would notice that there were

         20  tremendous numbers of warnings about the need for

         21  safe use.

         22                 We even have been training sales

         23  staff, because as you know, there is a lot of agents

         24  operating for all of the companies in and around the

         25  City, and often times they are not as conversant as
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          2  they should be, and we need to train our sales

          3  people better.

          4                 Many of the companies have

          5  interactive web sites, I know we do. We also train

          6  our employees so that they are understanding of the

          7  importance of this issue.

          8                 And as Mr. Hinton said, you know,

          9  educating the customer on -- making available the

         10  hands-free devices, and then educating on the proper

         11  use of them while driving is a big issue that needs

         12  to be done.

         13                 I think people just take for granted

         14  that they get behind the wheel they could talk

         15  without any other care in the world, and they don't

         16  understand that there are many ways in which they

         17  can enhance their ability to operate a vehicle, one

         18  of them, of course, being using hands-free devices.

         19                 So, I just wanted to emphasize that

         20  point, and we will be happy to answer additional

         21  questions.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, next.

         23                 MR. ROTHFELDER: Good morning. Thank

         24  you for having us here this morning, and I am Martin

         25  Rothfelder, I am here on behalf of Nextel
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          2  Communications. I'd like to briefly talk about some

          3  of the problems that have been alluded to a little

          4  bit today, the problem of the patchwork quilts of

          5  county laws, the legal and enforcement problems

          6  related to that.

          7                 As a general matter, New York State,

          8  like most other states, has in its motor vehicle law

          9  requirements of uniformed traffic laws with rather

         10  limited exceptions for local governments, and as you

         11  look at New York Motorvehicle law, Section 69 or

         12  Section 1604, you will find those sections, and

         13  unless your municipality has a specific exemption

         14  for that, it's not clear that you have the authority

         15  to regulate things of this nature. And that's for

         16  the obvious reasons that you don't want traffic laws

         17  and practices to vary from municipality to

         18  municipality, county to county. You don't want a

         19  different blood alcohol level in Westchester County

         20  than New York City. You don't want to have different

         21  types of truck flaps required, turn signals,

         22  whatever, and that's the reason for that.

         23                 And in the Rockland County situation,

         24  the Attorney General, as already been alluded today,

         25  did issue an opinion that local governments really
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          2  don't have the authority to enact this type of

          3  regulation.

          4                 So, in addition to the many things

          5  that have been talked about having confused

          6  motorists, not knowing what the requirement is in

          7  each county, and people spending money to comply in

          8  one county and perhaps still not being in compliance

          9  with another county, you are going to have another

         10  likelihood. After this goes into effect and many New

         11  York City residents, I don't know if it's a million

         12  or only 400,000, spend money to comply with it,

         13  there probably is going to be litigation, and unless

         14  the Attorney General is all wrong, the law will

         15  probably overturn, and you will have unhappy

         16  constituents who have spent money to comply with the

         17  law that perhaps should have been seen from the

         18  get-go as not in compliance with state law.

         19                 With regard to enforcement, I think

         20  if it is done on any level, if there is going to be

         21  a learning curve on the enforcement, to how to

         22  enforce it, it's going to be difficult to enforce -

         23  were they really talking on the phone or just

         24  holding it? Were they dialing? Were they scratching

         25  the back of their head with it? I don't know. And
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          2  the question is, do you want New York City to be

          3  among the first working on these enforcement issues,

          4  and have them again being different from what

          5  perhaps other counties are doing? I think what you

          6  are telling us is instead you want Albany to be

          7  doing that, and that's generally, over view is that

          8  this is a state issue, it should be addressed at

          9  Albany. We have encouraged you to take your concerns

         10  to Albany and not add to the patch quilt which is

         11  just starting to develop in New York State.

         12                 We think that you will have a

         13  significant impact. Your action as opposed to

         14  whether you think of doing it here as opposed to

         15  telling Albany to act will be a significant factor

         16  as to whether both your City residents and the State

         17  of New York people, both living and traveling

         18  through it, face a state policy or a patch quilt,

         19  confusing patch quilt policy.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, thank you.

         22                 We do feel that we have the right to

         23  pass this legislation. What you are comparing not

         24  exactly complies to us. We are a City of a million

         25  and more and we do have an opinion from the Attorney
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          2  General's Office, and it is both Corp Counsel, which

          3  as well -- Corp Counsel also feels that we can.

          4  Absolutely, or they wouldn't have put legislation

          5  in, and our Council, we have done significant work

          6  on this.

          7                 But, again, the intention here is not

          8  to pass something if the state is going to pass

          9  something. And we are hoping that this will be the

         10  vehicle for the State to pass legislation and we

         11  hope to work with them to pass this legislation. If

         12  they don't, then of course we will move forward.

         13                 Obviously, we are going to take your

         14  comments into consideration, and I also welcome you

         15  at any time to speak to my counsel and myself.

         16  Despite that the members have had problems getting

         17  to the boss, you can get to me. You don't have to go

         18  through my government affairs person. I will respond

         19  to you.

         20                 So, obviously, you know, we will talk

         21  about this, further discussion on this.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 MS. HASTINGS: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, we are going

         25  to move on.
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          2                 Is the representative of

          3  Assemblymember Ortiz' office here?

          4                 Would you identify yourself for the

          5  record?

          6                 MR. MORALES: Good afternoon. My name

          7  is Marcelo Morales. And I am here today to present

          8  testimony on behalf of Assemblymember Felix Ortiz,

          9  the New York State representative from the 51st

         10  Assembly District in Brooklyn.

         11                 Assemblyman Ortiz regrets that he is

         12  unable to be here today. He was looking forward to

         13  testifying in person, however, his presence was

         14  required in El Salvador to assist with the relief

         15  efforts to the victims of earthquakes that recently

         16  have devastated that country. The Assemblyman has

         17  requested that I read the following statement.

         18                 "First of all, I would like to thank

         19  the New York City Council for the opportunity to

         20  speak here today to address an issue that I have

         21  been vocal about for many years, the dangers of

         22  using a mobile telephone while driving a

         23  motorvehicle. Since 1996, I have been advocating for

         24  a law in New York State to ban the use of cell

         25  phones while driving a motorvehicle.
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          2                 I first proposed my legislation in

          3  the New York State Assembly after witnessing a near

          4  tragic accident involving a cellular phone user.

          5  Initially there was little support from my

          6  legislation. However, as more and more studies were

          7  conducted, the New England Journal of Medicine, the

          8  Center for Urban Transportation Research College of

          9  Engineering at the University of South Florida,

         10  State Farm Insurance, the Rochester Institute of

         11  Technology, Prevention Magazine and the AAA

         12  Foundation for Traffic Safety, it became clear that

         13  the use of mobile telephones while driving increased

         14  the likelihood of accidents and posed a real threat

         15  to our highway safety.

         16                 My legislation began to gather public

         17  support. I began to receive letters and telephone

         18  calls from individuals who had been involved in cell

         19  phone-related crashes. They told me about how they,

         20  themselves, had been injured or crippled or they

         21  have lost a loved one in an accident caused by a

         22  distracted cell phone driver.

         23                 They encouraged me to push for a ban

         24  on driving and talking in our state, and offered

         25  their assistance to work for its passage.
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          2                 As I listened to these individuals

          3  pour out their hearts to me, I realized that there

          4  was a real need for my legislation. I became more

          5  determined than ever to remove cell phones from the

          6  hands of our motorvehicle drivers.

          7                 For six long years I have been

          8  leading a crusade to make the public more aware of

          9  the dangers of driving and talking. For six long

         10  years I have been fighting in Albany to implement a

         11  state law to restrict the use of mobile phones while

         12  driving.

         13                 I have traveled to Washington, D.C.,

         14  Florida, and other states to speak out on this

         15  topic, and to promote support my cell phone

         16  legislation. I have repeatedly called upon the

         17  Speaker of the Assembly and the Chairman of the New

         18  York State Assembly Transportation Committee to hold

         19  public hearings on this issue.

         20                 Last year I even conducted my own

         21  public opinion survey, the results were astounding.

         22                 Out of 350 people surveyed, between

         23  the ages of 21 and 35, 72 percent of cell phone

         24  owners said that they would support legislation to

         25  prohibit the use of phones while driving, and 76
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          2  percent said that they would support legislation to

          3  track cell phone-related accidents via police/motor

          4  vehicle accident reports.

          5                 I am convinced that these results

          6  indicate that people have become more aware of the

          7  dangers of using cell phones while driving.

          8                 The reality is that the use of mobile

          9  phones by drivers is out of control. Cell

         10  phone-related accidents have been rapidly on the

         11  rise, and the consequences are devastating. In the

         12  interest of public safety, we can no longer stand by

         13  idly. The time has come for government intervention.

         14                 We have seen many small towns and

         15  counties, including Brooklyn, Ohio, Marlboro, New

         16  Jersey, Hilltown, Pennsylvania, Suffolk County, Long

         17  Island, and most recently, Westchester County, New

         18  York, pass local laws to regulate the use of mobile

         19  telephones while driving.

         20                 I commend these localities for taking

         21  the initiative to act in this public safety issue,

         22  just as I applaud our City officials for banning the

         23  use of cell phones by taxi drivers.

         24                 I urge you today to examine this

         25  issue carefully. The reality is that cell phone
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          2  usage by drivers is resulting in the loss of life,

          3  devastation of families, personal injuries, and

          4  property damage. In the interest of public safety,

          5  we need to act responsibly and pass legislation that

          6  will make our highways safer and protect the people

          7  we were elected to serve.

          8                 I will continue to fight for a

          9  Statewide legislation and I welcome your support to

         10  assist me to work for passage of Statewide

         11  legislation.

         12                 Thank you today, and God bless."

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 MR. MORALES: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Please send

         17  regards.

         18                 MR. MORALES: Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Michael Smith.

         20                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: He had to

         21  leave.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay. Go ahead,

         23  identify yourself for the record.

         24                 MR. KOMANOFF: Charles Komanoff,

         25  K-o-m-a-n-o-f-f, with the Pedestrian Rights Group
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          2  Right of Way.

          3                 Ladies and gentlemen, this bill is a

          4  real Christmas tree, it has something for everybody.

          5  Well, almost everybody. It's a big bundle of cash

          6  for the cell phone industry, who will get to sell a

          7  lot of shiny new hands-free gear to drivers. As you

          8  heard the representatives from the cell phone

          9  industry testify a few minutes ago.

         10                 It's nice for drivers, since it

         11  enables them to race through the streets jabbering

         12  to their brokers or boyfriends with your blessing,

         13  as long as they buy that shiny new gear, and, hey,

         14  they wanted it anyway.

         15                 It is even rather nice for you City

         16  Council members, since it looks like a safety

         17  initiative that won't make anybody angry.

         18                 The only people who don't have a give

         19  under the tree are the pedestrians and bicyclists of

         20  New York City. They are the ones who will have to

         21  bear the consequences of distracted drivers

         22  operating their vehicles at an even lower level of

         23  competence than is now the case, because Intro. 852

         24  and 855 permit the continued use of cell phones

         25  provided they are the hands-free variety.
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          2                 It isn't the use of hands that makes

          3  cell phones dangerous, it's the distraction. And not

          4  the ordinary driver distraction of changing stations

          5  or applying lipstick, but the cognitive distraction.

          6  When you talk on a cell phone, you project yourself

          7  mentally to the space of someone who is not in the

          8  car. That person, who is not experiencing what you

          9  are experiencing in the car, nevertheless commands

         10  your attention, regardless of the other human being

         11  crossing the street in front of you, or balancing on

         12  a bike inches from your front fender.

         13                 This has been studied and there is no

         14  doubt about it.

         15                 Here, for example, I have two

         16  studies, one which appeared in the New England

         17  Journal of Medicine, and one conducted by a

         18  consortium of insurance companies. I have summarized

         19  them on the reverse, and I can provide copies of

         20  these to any of you who are willing to be diverted

         21  by the facts. Both find that cell phone use, whether

         22  hands-on or hands-free, leads to considerably worse

         23  driving and significantly more crashes.

         24                 So, if you were really interested in

         25  safety, particularly for vulnerable New Yorkers,
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          2  pedestrians and bicyclists, you would be banning

          3  cell phone use in cars, period.

          4                 Now, I recognize that this would be

          5  difficult for you to do. The very well-healed cell

          6  phone industry would be mighty unhappy, and we all

          7  know that money talks.

          8                 Then, of course, there are the

          9  drivers. Drivers are the spoiled children of public

         10  policy, and like spoiled children everywhere, they

         11  throw a tantrum when you refuse them a toy. So,

         12  realistically, I expect this bill to sail through or

         13  slide through, I should say, like a Lincoln

         14  Navigator on a patch of black ice, but when the body

         15  count starts to mount up, please don't say you

         16  weren't warned.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

         19                 Someone from the AAA. Okay, John -- I

         20  can't get the last.

         21                 MR. CORLETT: Corlett.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Corlett, okay. I'm

         23  sorry.

         24                 And our last, after that will be Neal

         25  Scott, if he is still around.
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          2                 MR. CORLETT: Good morning. My name is

          3  John Corlett. I am the Assistant Director of

          4  Government Affairs of the Auto Club of New York. I

          5  am here today on behalf of AAA New York State, which

          6  comprises the State's nine AAA clubs, and serves

          7  more than 2.4 million members in New York State.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Including myself.

          9                 MR. CORLETT: And, Mr. Chairman, let

         10  me just thank you for your appreciation of the

         11  uniformity issue, that's our principle concern, and

         12  I know you have done a lot for motorists as your

         13  tenure as the Chairman and we appreciate that also.

         14                 There is no doubt that motorists are

         15  fed up with inconsiderate, inattentive and unsafe

         16  drivers talking on their mobile phones, and everyone

         17  has been appalled at the horrible, highly publicized

         18  fatal crashes attributed to using a mobile phone

         19  while driving.

         20                 AAA encourages responsible mobile

         21  phone use by keeping conversations short and brief.

         22  We have also urged the National Highway Traffic

         23  Safety Administration mobile phone manufacturers and

         24  the automotive industry to continue research and

         25  development of design characteristics and
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          2  technologies that minimize driver distraction while

          3  using mobile phones in vehicles. And while we do not

          4  vigorously promote hands-free mobile phones as a

          5  solution to safe mobile phone use while driving, we

          6  do recognize that hands-free technology, as it

          7  continues to evolve, may provide some increased

          8  measure of safety and convenience.

          9                 There is little question that the

         10  public and AAA members overwhelmingly support

         11  restrictions on mobile phone use. At the same time,

         12  AAA as an organization, has long embraced the notion

         13  that there should be one comprehensive and uniform

         14  motorvehicle code of wide application throughout a

         15  state and that local authorities should be limited

         16  in enacting their own restrictions.

         17                 Consequently, we have not supported

         18  any of the various proposals by cities and counties

         19  across New York State to restrict mobile phone use.

         20                 A patchwork of locally enacted

         21  restrictions will subject motorists to different

         22  restrictions and different penalties for the same

         23  offense, depending on the City, county or village or

         24  town through which they are driving.

         25                 It has been our longstanding belief
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          2  that uniformity ensures compliance with the law,

          3  after all, you cannot accept motorists to bone up on

          4  the laws of another city, village or town before

          5  they cross the local boundary lines.

          6                 Making the rules of the road uniform

          7  and easily comprehensible ensures compliance, while

          8  conflicting and confusing laws tends to discourage

          9  compliance.

         10                 Furthermore, it is our firm belief

         11  that important issues such as this, which transcend

         12  municipal boundaries, are more appropriately dealt

         13  with on a broader basis, rather than with separate

         14  rules for every local jurisdiction. Studying such

         15  concerns, the Rockland County Executive vetoed a

         16  proposed local law prohibiting hand-held phone use

         17  by motorists in Rockland County.

         18                 Moreover, it is our belief that

         19  Intros 852 and 855 would not withstand legal

         20  challenges. It seems to us that it is well

         21  recognized that the power to regulate the use of

         22  motor vehicles and public roads is primarily the

         23  prerogative of the State Legislature, unless

         24  expressly granted by the Legislature in the vehicle

         25  and traffic law.
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          2                 That view was further validated when

          3  on January 16th, New York State Attorney General's

          4  Office issued a written advisory opinion, suggesting

          5  that localities are preempted by state law from

          6  enacting local laws, such as the ones before us

          7  today.

          8                 In short, AAA appreciates and is in

          9  sympathy with the Council's efforts and intentions

         10  to enhance safety for motorists and pedestrians

         11  alike by proposing this legislation.

         12                 However, in the interest of

         13  uniformity and in view of the Attorney General's

         14  opinion, there seems to be only one thing to do,

         15  that is enact a home rule message or resolution

         16  calling on the State Legislature to enact a

         17  uniformed statewide restriction. Should you pursue

         18  that course, it would have our strong support.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 The last speaker is Neel Scott.

         24                 MR. SCOTT: Hi. Good morning. My name

         25  is Neel Scott and I am the Campaign Coordinator for
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          2  Transportation Alternatives, New York City's

          3  advocates for bicyclists, pedestrians and

          4  environmentally sensible transportation.

          5                 Transportation Alternatives endorses

          6  proposed Intros. 851 and 855, which will prohibit

          7  the use of hands-held cellular phones while driving.

          8                 Transportation Alternatives applauds

          9  Speaker Vallone and Mayor Giuliani for aggressively

         10  pursuing this progressive legislation.

         11                 However, we urge City Council and the

         12  Mayor to make these laws truly effective by

         13  expanding them to include a ban on both hand-held

         14  and hands-free cellular phones.

         15                 A 1997 New England Journal of

         16  Medicine Study found that talking on hand-held and

         17  hand-free cell phones while driving quadruples the

         18  risk of a crash, and is equivalent to driving with a

         19  blood alcohol content of 0.10, i.e. Legally drunk.

         20                 According to the Journal of Medical

         21  Decision-Making, motorists using cellular telephones

         22  account for 1,729 collisions, 317 injuries, 1

         23  million in health care cost and 4 million in

         24  property damage each day in the United States.

         25                 This is equivalent to 20 deaths and
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          2  3,200 injuries annually due to cell phone motoring

          3  in New York City.

          4                 No one should be killed because a

          5  motorist feels that it is necessary to talk on the

          6  phone while driving. These bills are a good first

          7  step towards reducing the dangers from cell phone

          8  impaired drivers.

          9                 However, these bills must be seen as

         10  only first steps. Expert studies clearly conclude

         11  using a hand-free cell phone while driving is just

         12  as dangerous as using a hand-held cell phone.

         13                 Researchers have found that the

         14  problem is the distraction of the conversation

         15  itself, not the active dialing or holding a phone

         16  that accounts for the increased risk.

         17                 These bills should go further and ban

         18  the use of all cell phones, hand-held or hand-free,

         19  except for emergency use.

         20                 Japan, Israel, Portugal and Singapore

         21  have already banned the use of all cellular phones

         22  while driving on their roads, it's time for the City

         23  of New York to do the same.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.
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          2                 First of all, I want to appreciate

          3  all the witnesses that came, in particular they are

          4  getting to know my style after so many years, that I

          5  like to limit your testimony, you can always add to

          6  it and submit and I have no problem making it part

          7  of the record, so thank you very much for that.

          8                 Before we close, I just wanted to

          9  recognize, and any time I see children, that's

         10  important to me and to the Council. We have a class

         11  with us here upstairs from Jamaica, Queens, in

         12  Council Member Povman's District, and it's PS 117,

         13  and I guess there is a Ms. Fern Goldwasser -- it's

         14  someone else? It's all right, we didn't check your

         15  ID downstairs. And what they see here is it is the

         16  fourth grade; am I right? That's very good. First of

         17  all, even though I am from Brooklyn, I know where

         18  Jamaica is, not Jamaica the island, but Jamaica,

         19  Queens. You have a wonderful community and a

         20  wonderful school, because my daughter used to go to

         21  a high school in Jamaica, Queens, traveled from

         22  Brooklyn. So, obviously, there is something about

         23  Jamaica's air that is so good, that it's good for

         24  education. So, welcome here to the Council.

         25                 What you are here seeing is a
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          2  Committee on Transportation, conducting a hearing

          3  about the use of cell phones, and I'm sure that your

          4  parents when they drive, they are careful not to use

          5  the cell phone, unless of an emergency. But this law

          6  that we want to enact to make it safer for people

          7  like yourself and your children, for people walking

          8  the streets, and making it safer for drivers. So,

          9  this legislation that we have here is what will ban

         10  cell phone use, except for an emergency, and also to

         11  use it hands-free.

         12                 So, you are seeing government in

         13  action, so tomorrow in the news, or tonight in the

         14  news, you will see you were in the City Council, you

         15  will say I was there, that's exactly, that

         16  legislative body that enacts the laws, so welcome to

         17  the City Council, welcome to the Congress of the

         18  City of New York, and to the body that legislates,

         19  passes budgets, as well as does zoning, and also

         20  tends to your individual needs, and constituent

         21  services.  And particularly you have a very fine

         22  Council member, probably one of the senior Council

         23  members there is in the Council, so welcome, and I

         24  hope you enjoy your stay here and learn about this,

         25  because one day you can be sitting in this body,
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          2  sitting in this chair, I hope, one day, and join

          3  government and be part of government.

          4                 So, good luck to you, all of you.

          5  Thank you.

          6                 This Committee is adjourned. Thank

          7  you.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 12:05 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 2nd day of March 2001.
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